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CHAIR JOHNSON: .. , (gavel) . .. The Parks and Economic Development Committee meeting will come to
order. It's November 16,2006. Thank you, Members, for your attendance today. We have with us this
afternoon,
Member Robert Carroll,
Member Michelle Anderson,
Member Danny Mateo,
and
Vice-Chair Charmaine Tavares of the Committee is excused this afternoon. From Staff, we have
Ms. Shelly Espeleta and Ms. Pauline Martins. From the Planning Department, we also have in
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attendance Ms. Robyn Loudermilk, we have Mr. Thome Abbott from Planning. From the Mayor's
Office, in the audience, we have Ms. Jan Inouye-Ogata. Our Corporation Counsel is Mr. Jesse Souki.
And we have also set up a panel today, our resource people who will be participating in this discussion
and who will be available for your questioning are Mr. Eric Yoshizawa of Ameron Hawaii, Mr. Michael
Munekiyo of Munekiyo & Hiraga, and Mr. Howard Hanzawa formerly with SSFM International. He is
now with Kaanapali Land Development.

PED-29

MAUl INLAND SAND RESOURCE QUANTIFICATION STUDY (C.C. No. 06-69)

CHAIR JOHNSON: So, Members, at this point we have one item on our agenda today, that is PED-29 which is
the "Maui Inland Sand Resource Quantification Study".
We are in receipt of County
Communication No. 06-69, from the Mayor, transmitting a draft report entitled "Maui Inland Sand
Resource Quantification Study of February 2006", and this was prepared SSFM International. By
correspondence dated March 7, 2006, from Council Chair G. Riki Hokama, he also transmitted the
report to the Committee. So I thank you, Members. That is the item that we are here to discuss today.
We do have individuals who have signed up to testify. If the individuals would please be so kind,
whoever is in the audience to please tum off your cell phones or pagers or just put them to vibrate mode
or silent mode. And the first individual who will be testifying is Ms. Patti Cadiz.

. . . BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY . ..
MS. CADIZ: Aloha. My name is Patti Cadiz, and I'm here to talk about the "Sand Quantification Study" for
the County of Maui. I am hoping that you have seen the recommendations by Rob Parsons, the
Environmental Coordinator. The very first recommendation that he made was to act quickly, because
this resource of sand is a depleting resource with maybe no more than five or
years or maybe less,
inland sand resource.
recent information, before we're out

resource
no
think you're entering
new territory
to salvage the,
this
resource. It
can't be replanted like sandalwood trees, you can't dig another well and find it underground, once it's
gone it's gone, and then the next place to get it is another island or another continent.
And, I don't know if you've read some of the materials to find out that the quality of the inland sand on
Maui, it's a carbonate sand and it is far nicer than many, many other sources of sand. I believe that our
island, in fact, the very essence of what Maui is depend on the health and the beauty of our beaches.
And I understand that there are business interests to consider as well, but if the sand is going to run out
in five or six years it's a short-term business plan to be compared with the long-term economy of this
-2-
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island. And I don't believe that, that it's something to be taken lightly. I think the County and the
citizens of Maui are looking to you to exercise your fiduciary responsibility and protect this resource
before it's gone. Any questions?
CHAIR JOHNSON: Are there any questions? Thank you very much, Patti. And I know that your business is
dependent on this resource as well.
MS. CADIZ: Well, my business is one thing but even just being here on Maui and enjoying the beach with my
family is equally important. And I may not be in that business forever, I can find another job, but I
can't, ifthere aren't beaches here, we might as well be in Arizona I guess.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. And thank you very much for coming to testify. Our next testifier and the last
person who signed up to testify is Ms. Barbara Guild and if you could come forward, Barbara. She's,
Barbara has also provided us with handouts as well.
MS. GUILD: Can you all hear me? I'm Barbara Guild and we live in Sprecklesville. And beaches, as Patti
just said, are nature's way of preventing land erosion. And without material in front of walls that do
stop land erosion you don't have a beach any longer. The walls are .. .I'm not against walls, walls have
their purpose. But putting material, whether it be sand or gravel, in front of the wall is what really holds
the ocean back. It shores it up.
It's due to human activity that our beaches have gone away in Maui, it's human activity that has
destroyed them. And those of you who have heard my spiel in the past you understand that the dune
system is very important, and either our roads or buildings are built on the dune which is the reservoir of
material to maintain a beach. Once that's either taken away or covered or inhibited in some way then
the beaches go away. And so since it's nature's way of protecting our shoreline it's essential that we
restore these places that have been decaying or the beaches that have been starved, and the, the current
word for beaches is to nourish or feed a sick beach and that restores it to health.

our buildings were
read is that
County and the State are no longer adamantly ag:amst U',-,VlJl,"- UUHIU.UJl~
realize that until something is done to restore the beach it's the only way to keep the land intact.
Our success started in 1995 so we have been bringing sand by truck from the inland dunes to our beach
since that time. We had, we had success immediately, we've never had a problem with the wall but it
was tending to collapse or have to be maintained after that. We've brought in on a 600 foot length of
beach 3,200.. .32,000 tons of sand which is not a lot of sand but it is a lot of truck loads. Because if you
get 15 to 20 tons per truck you can imagine that we've brought in a lot of truck loads of sand. The cost
-3-
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of the sand delivered, that is, has been anywhere from $2.25 a ton to $20.28 a ton which was the last
sand that we put in, in October.
My goal is to restore the natural beach that was there to the 1912 line which in this handout that I gave
to you you'll see it. And you'll see that this pocket beach that orig ... , that was there in 1912 is a very
nice healthy beach. The problem along the coast where this project is was that the sugar companies used
the sand, they ran a rail line along the coast and mined the sand from 20 foot high dunes and took it to
the lime kiln which comes up a little later on your agenda. And the lime kiln ...
MR. ESPELETA: Three minutes.
MS. GUILD: Is my time up? Okay.
CHAIR JOHNSON: No. You have, you have an additional minute to conclude.
MS. GUILD: Oh. Okay. The lime kiln was consuming so much sand and they, and they used the lime in
processing the sugarcane in the, in the Paia Mill and probably in the other sugar mills around the island.
And they, and really they were ignorant of what they were doing to destroy the beaches. But they took
so much sand in front of the lime kiln that they had to build a wall which is the wall that they're talking
about. Because if you'll look. . .I didn't bring a picture of the 1912 lime, but there was sand at Baldwin
Beach and in front of the lime kiln as well. And so they were really shooting themselves in the foot by
taking the lime off the beach and then having to build a wall.
So anyway, I am, I would like to encourage you to try to preserve the sand that is in the dunes presently,
because it is, it is a far more economical way to restore beaches until that has run out. Dredging also
works but dredging is much more expensive and much more difficult to, to do. Dredging is done many
places in the world and it is successful.
MR. ESPELETA:

minutes.

MS.

MS.

are

CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes. Members, are there questions of Ms. Guild? Mr. Mateo followed by Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Madam Chair, thank you very much. Thank you very much for being here and
providing your testimony. One of your, your comments was that you were, that, that sand from an
inland dunes was ... you were getting the sand from the inland dune to replenish the beach side. Was
that what you said?
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MS. GUILD: No. I didn't say inland dunes, if I did I made a mistake. It's the inland sand. We don't take it
from another dune because the dune is very important to the healthCOUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah.
MS. GUILD: --of a beach.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah. Thank you. I thought I heard you said an inland dune which is why I'm
asking. Thank-MS. GUILD: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: --you very much. Thank you-MS. GUILD: Thank you for clarifying that.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: --Madam Chair.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you. Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Hi, Barbara.
MS. GUILD: Hi. Hi, Michelle.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: It's very nice to see you again. For those who don't know could you just
give us a brief summary of your credentials, your background, and, and what motivated you to think that
you could take this on and be successful.
MS. GUILD: Well, I've been around beaches all my life but I happen to, when I went to University at Berkley
I
a BS degree
it
the
that I

And so I have to admit that I selfishly started out trying to figure out a solution for this. And when I
finally realized that by adding sand.. .I did, did other research on it as well and I found out that
worldwide the way to restore a beach is to add material whether it be sand or cobbles or shingles or
whatever and that's, that's my background.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so you folks started doing this in 2002?

-5-
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MS. GUILD: No. In 1995, we started adding sand but we started in 1988 or '87 actually by putting sandbags
and trying to prevent the erosion of our, of our land. And it was eroding of course because the sand had
been mined or removed from the shoreline all along the North Shore with this rail track. I later found
out the history on that and it just couldn't recover because there wasn't any sand available.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Enough in the bank to replenish ...
MS. GUILD: There was not any in the bank, barely any in the bank. And what happens-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So ...
MS. GUILD: --with the, with the Hawaiian beaches is that the sand comes from out in the ocean. It doesn't
corne from the land as, as mainland beaches do, so it's a very narrow strip of land, of sand to start with,
and once that's gone it's gone. It doesn't replenish itself unless it, it comes from offshore, and it had
taken thousands of years to build up the beach, beaches that we have.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You know, you and I've worked together over the years on this, and one
of the things I found really interesting and I think is worth repeating to people because it's not
something that's obviously apparent, and that is, is that in the near-shore waters of the beach there are
pukas in the base of the land. Once the sand has been eroded away there are big pukas and so when you
replenish the sand and the dynamic of the action of the waves moves the sand around, some of the sand
that you put on the beach ends up filling up the pukas underneath the water.
So it looks like you're not replenishing the beach but you have to keep adding sand year after year until
that, all those pukas are full and so that the sand can then stay on the beach and replenish the beach and
move back and forth. So you started bringing sand in, in 1995, and so could you just give us a brief
summary of since then how many times you've added more sand and you say that your total now is
32,000 tons. But that 32,000 tons has been added over an II-year period?
MS.

Yes.
us an

MS.

to

I was
to
act
I carne,
on
I
it's about $270,000 on sand and having that delivered; however, we had spent $600,000 on our three
failed efforts to restore the beach. And so it was a far more economical way to restore the beach but just
to, to backtrack a little bit. Michelle, I had met her a number of years ago when she was still working
for Nishiki. And we had quite, we've had several sessions.
But a beach is similar.. .I like to, to use the analogy of an iceberg. And in an iceberg you see only a
tenth of the total iceberg above the water because of the density of the fresh water and the, and the
saltwater. A beach is very similar, you only see about 10 percent of the material that is in a beach on the
dry beach. The rest of it is in the near shore, and that shoring fills in all these poke, pukas, as Michelle
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described it, and shores up the water. And that's why a beach is called a shore and it shores up the water
by beaching things on it, by, by ships running aground, by seaweed washing up, by driftwood, other
kinds of debris. It's nature's way of maintaining the shoring material in a beach. And I think of it as a
fence, so.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Barbara, is there any way for you to qualify how much of... you gave us
some prices 20, $20 a ton delivered recently.
MS. GUILD: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Is there any way to qualify how much of that was for sand and how much
of it was for delivery?
MS. GUILD: Yes. Other than the sales tax which I can't tell you but the sand is at the moment $20-and, or the,
last month it was $20.15 a ton and it was $7.50 a ton to truck it.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay.
MS. GUILD: So per ton we're talking about whatever the, those two totals are plus the sales tax. And that was
something that I thought of this morning, that if people were going to use sand, whether the County is
able to stock pile it or, or have, you know, some way of their keeping it for beach restoration that if they
didn't charge the people the tax on the trucking and on the sand itself that would help. It would be a
small way that the County could contribute to allowing something.
Because it always goes on a public beach, our beach is very public and people love it, if you all have a
chance to come to Sugar Cove and boogie board or walk on the beach or whatever. On the weekends, I
don't know, last weekend, Patti, how many people were on that beach? It's not very big, but probably
100 people, 70 or 80 people and there's a public beach access and some parking, so.
'JIH.L>HJUJ'-''<''

ANDERSON:

are

getting
are

over

a

U

.....LH'U'H

MS. GUILD: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And you spent less than half of that on sand and were successful in
restoring the beach. And you still have some hardened structures? Is that correct?
MS. GUILD: Yes. With the wall, the wall ...
-7-
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: It's hard to see it because it's planted over but.
MS. GUILD: Right. Well, it's not only planted over but the sand has filled in to the interstices or the pukas of
the wall, and also I used to ...when we first started doing this and I thought oh my goodness if we'd
been smart enough we could have used all that half a million, more than a million dollars on sand. But I
realize now that it was a super example for Hawaii is that, okay, you have the wall if you had a tsunami
or if you had something and it took all the sand into the near shore momentarily you would still have
protection of your land. But what it proves is that you can still have the wall and just put sand in front of
it and then the wall more or less disappears. That you, you still have it but now instead of a 13 foot high
wall it in some places it's completely covered in some places it's-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: With sand?
MS. GUILD: --with sand. Because the sand is in front of the wall between the water and the eroding land that
was once there.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so your homeowners' association has taken on the responsibility of
doing this and financing it?
MS. GUILD: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
homeowners' association?

And, and how many, well, how many people are involved in your

MS. GUILD: We have 18 condominium units.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So 18 families have contributedMS. GUILD: Yes.
--to

MS. GUILD: Okay.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you very much, Barbara. And thank you for the handouts as well. Are there
any ...
MS. GUILD: Thank you all and I hope that something is done about the sand.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Thanks very much and we're hoping to-- 8-

PARKS AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui

November 16,2006

MS. GUILD: And not, and not just for us but for all ofMaui, it's really important.
... END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . ..

CHAIR JOHNSON: --and we're hoping to get more information, Barbara, too. I also wanted to recognize in
the audience Zoe Norcross-Nu'u who's also here as a resource person if she is needed. Unfortunately
Rob Parsons could not be with us. He's off island, from the Mayor's office. And we did invite the
representative from Hawaiian Cement, Mr. Bill Homeman, but he was unable to attend today's meeting.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: He's here.
(NOTE: Mr. Horneman raised his hand in the gallery.)
CHAIR JOHNSON: Oh, he is here.
MR. HORNEMAN: (NOTE: He's speakingfrom the gallery.) Yes, ma'am.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you very much for coming. So originally we didn't, we, we weren't sure if you
were going to be able to attend. Well, if, if we can, we may take a short recess or whatever and just
make room for you up here.
Is there anyone, first of all, wishing to offer additional testimony from the audience? Seeing none. If
there's no objection, the Chair will close public testimony at this time.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No objections.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. No objection, public testimony is closed. Members, we'll just take about a five
just
an
participate
»Aft.uu.,- recess.

RECONVENE:
CHAIR JOHNSON: ... (gavel) . . . The Parks and Economic Development Committee meeting of
November 16th will come to back into order. Thank you, Members. As you note we have added a few
more panel members and thank you, Staff, for adding the additional seating. We have also because she
has dealt with this issue for quite some time Ms. Barbara Guild, who also gave us testimony. We have
Ms. Zoe Norcross-Nu'u, who has also done a lot of work with our Planning Department on beach
erosion and shoreline issues. We have also joining us Mr. Bill Homeman from Hawaiian Cement. So
thank you, Members.
-9-
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At this point in time I wanted to just set the stage. Each one of the Members and of course the people at
the tables will have to share a microphone, but I would ask that when you are asked a question or if you
want to give a brief comment initially just to introduce yourself. State your name first of all, who you
represent, and then when you're speaking into the microphone when you're asked a question if you
could please just state your first name for the record, because Pauline, who is doing our transcribing, just
asked that because she's not going to be able to look up every time. She just asked for recordation
purposes that we do this. So hopefully that'll make it a little bit easier.
But, Members, because after our last meeting there were a lot of questions which came up that, you
know, are not answered in the "Sand Quantification Study". I did have an opportunity and Staff also
had an opportunity to meet with the people that are actually engaged in this particular activity. Also
Mr. Parsons and myself had met because we're not sure of some of the options that we have available.
We've sent a communication to Corporation Counsel to also try to make a determination what our legal
authority is so that if there are permits involved, if there's restrictions that can be placed on permits, if
there are other issues involved over which we do not have control.
I felt it was really important for you to understand clearly what we can and what we cannot do and then
also because I had some very interesting information coming from one of the people who would be
doing some questions today and what they would be willing to offer to the County of Maui. I felt it was
important to just have this dialogue before we decide what action can be taken to preserve this resource.
So with that being said just first of all, I'd like to just go down the line and if you could, I'll begin with
Thome Abbott from Planning. Actually Robyn is over on this side, so Robyn Loudermilk is, you know,
over there. But if you could just for the record, Thome, just say, you know, what your ...
MR. ABBOTT: Thome, Thome Abbott, Coastal Resource Manager and Shoreline Planner for Maui County.
MR. HORNEMAN: Bill Homeman, Vice President of Hawaiian Cement.
MR.
as

good.
CHAIR JOHNSON: That's good.
MR. MUNEKIYO: Mike Munekiyo. We are the permitting consultant to Ameron Hawaii.
MS. NORCROSS-NU'U: Zoe Norcross-Nu'u, Coastal Geologist with the Sea Grant, University of Hawaii Sea
Grant Extension Service.
- 10-
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MS. GUILD: I'm Barbara Guild from the Sugar Cove Homeowners' Association.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Oh, Howard has another microphone, so you don't have to share theirs.... (chuckled) ...
MR. HANZAW A: I'm Howard Hanzawa, formerly with SSFM International, and we were commissioned to do
the sand study.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. At this point, Members, because there were a number of questions that came up
with regard to the "Sand Quantification Study" and also specific questions that came up about what
actual operations are going on. I, I would, I'm going to open up the floor to you if there are questions
So would
that you would like to begin with and ask anyone of the panelists.
...
Member
Anderson,
please
begin.
someone
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Madam Chair, if we, if we could, before we get into all these questions
about the study, I think one of the critical things that we're, we're facing is the permit that's being held
in abeyance while the Council has an opportunity to discuss this. And there was a memo sent to
Corp. Counsel November 9th , asking Corp. Counsel questions as to whether or not there is authority
within this body and the County in regards to these permits. Can private companies--in this case,
Hawaiian Cement--continue to extract sand without such permits being issued? If so what mechanisms
are involved that would allow sand extraction to continue? If such activity is occurring without an
issued permit would the activity be considered illegal?
The second question--it's a series of questions in two parts--can a Land Use Commission special use
permit and a County special use permit be issued subject to certain conditions, such as the payment of
fees and prohibitions on the shipment of sand outside of Maui County? Now I just--during our
break--checked with your analyst as to whether or not we had any written response to this because we
requested, or you requested a response by today_ .. . (end of tape, start 1B at 2:21 p.rn.). .. And as
there's no written response, Ms. Espeleta said that Corporation Counsel could give us a verbal response
know, what
today. So I'm wondering if we could start with that, Madam Chair, so that we know,
autnOJ"lty we
parameters are,
some mtiDfDlatllon
us.

MR. SOUKI: I have had an opportunity to look at this request of November 9th recently. But I have some
information that you might find useful about the questions. As I understand it and this is specific to
Hawaiian Cement because that's what the parameters of the question were about. That Hawaiian
Cement has a grading permit and the way that it's been working is that if you have a grading permit, the
grading permit only is in regard to how you're grading, are you using best management practices to
prevent run-off, those types of issues. The grading permit doesn't go to the issue of resource extraction
or what you intend to do with whatever you're grading on, on the parceL
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So in this case Hawaiian Cement had their grading permit and they had been extracting this sand. And
that raises an interesting question that maybe this Committee might want to follow up on, or look into
further is, you know, when, when does grading become resource extraction? There seems to be a gap in
the ordinances between grading which allows you to grade property and do as you wish with what you
dig out, and the special use permit requirements which say that in an Agricultural-zoned property there's
a special use permit for resource extraction which includes sand. And there's also a State special use
permit, the use of extraction, the use of extracting resources from Ag land it's not specific under the
HRS so that you would need a special use permit to do that activity. So there is also that special use
permit that you need the State and County zoning.
So in this particular case they had been operating with the grading permit as I understand it, and at some
point along the way there was some iwi that was uncovered in the project area, the grading area. And at
that point it went to the Burial Council, and the Burial Council had pointed out to Planning, through a
letter, that do they need special use permit for this type of activity? And when Planning took a look at it
they had determined and written to Hawaiian Cement that this looks more like resource extraction and
that they would be required to seek the special use permits. And as I understand it they actually are in
the process now of obtaining those permits.
The second question was about whether conditions could be placed on these, on these permits. And
first, I should say that the County special use permit, which is under Maui County Code 19.30A.060,
which references special uses in the Ag district, Ag-zoned areas because this is an agriculturally zoned
parcel, that mining and resource extraction is one of the special uses that an applicant could apply for,
and that in the definition under 19.04.040, "resource extraction" is defined as mining and processing of
natural deposits rock, gravel, and sand.
This process, this permit goes through the Planning Commission, so the Maui Planning Commission
would, will take a look at these, this permit and that permit would not come before a Council. The
Planning Commission may impose conditions and 19.510.070 says that, Subsection E says that the
Planning Commission may impose conditions on the granting of a request for a special use permit the
conditions are reasonably
impacts emanating
proposed land use. So
that's
I mean, excuse me,
the

conducting at
special use
added on.
this permit is processed through
Land Use Commission,
the State Land Use Commission. And under HRS 205-6, Subsection C, the Land Use Commission
could permit the desired use but only when the use would promote the effectiveness and objectives of
this chapter, so that would be 205, Chapter 205 HRS. And also Subsection D says that the Land Use
Commission may impose additional restrictions and this may be necessary or appropriate in granting the
approval including the adherence to representations made by the applicant.
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So as far as your question regarding conditions the conditions could be placed on these special use
permits, and those conditions would be placed by the Maui Planning Commission for the Zoning special
use permit and by the State Land Use Commission for the State special use permit.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: How many acres is involved in this? Is it under IS?
MS. LOUDERMILK: Robyn Loudermilk. At this point in time we're talking about 59 acres.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So it would go the State?
MS. LOUDERMILK: It will go to the State.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so, Mr. Souki, are you saying that, that we could have a condition
that requires payment of fees and also a prohibition on the shipment of sand outside of the County?
MR. SOUKI: If, if when you say "we" you mean Council.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No, no, no. I mean the County or the State Land Use Commission,
whoever it might be for this special use permit.
MR. SOUKI: If, if they can show, well, for the Planning Commission if they can show that the conditions are
reasonably conceived to mitigate the impacts emanating from the proposed use, and for the State Land
Use Commission if they can show that the additional restrictions are necessary or appropriate in granting
the approval. And as a general, generally conditions have to be tied to a legitimate government purpose,
and they should also have something, have a reasonable relationship to the general welfare of, of the
community.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Kind of sounds like an oxymoron because why would we permit it and
then condition a prohibition? You know, condition it with a prohibition of, of shipping the sand out of
want to go back
to
question, I
think
addressed the
they are
'VULA'-'U"U

UTt'I.P1"t'I,Pt"

or not sornetnUltg IS

IS

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Wait a minute.
MR. SOUKI: Here this is a grey area-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Souki. Ifthe Department has determined that they need a special use
permit but yet they're allowing them to continue to extract without having obtained the special use
permit, where is it in the County Code or in, you know, within the, yeah, within the County Code where
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the special use regulations lie that allows them to continue the activity even though they haven't
obtained the permit? I don't think that's the purview of a court, that's the purview of the County, that's
why we have a County Code. So that's the question, is, you know, whose, whose policy is it to allow
them to continue this activity even though they haven't obtained a permit?
MR. SOUKI: The policy is the County's policy, the ordinance is, the ordinance does not provide clear guidance
for this type of issue for inland sand resource extraction. And here's the issue, grading and grubbing is,
is an activity that is not, is permitted in, on Ag property. Grading and grubbing happens all the time.
And so the question is when does grading and grubbing become resource extraction that requires a
special use permit? There's a grey area between those two, I mean what, what kind of criteria should
the Department use to determine that?
So in this case where the area is grey and, you know, I don't know why the Department is, is taking this
course of action, but if I could speculate it appears that because of this grey area they would prefer to
work with the applicant now that it's come to their attention that perhaps, you know, because of the
Burial Council bringing it to its attention that this might be in fact to the level of resource extraction that
this would be the best way to go to get them to apply for these permits. But they still have the grading
permit, so they're still able to grade the property and do what they need to do with the sand. There's no
prohibition on what they, they can and cannot do with the sand they extract.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: There has been a legal determination by the County Planning Director
that a special use permit is required. Is that correct? That's what motivated them to ...
MR. SOUKI: The Planning Director doesn't make legal determinations. He recommended that they get these
permits if they continued to extract sand. I don't, I don't have the letter in front of me actually so I
won't, I won't speculate, but.
CHAIR JOHNSON: And, and, if just for the Members' purposes we will try to obtain that letter and get a copy
of it and put it in the file. Because I don't believe we have that in there, do we Shelly?

we
COUNCILMEMBER
I,
to
I
appreciate his attempt, but I don't think that's gotten us anywhere. I mean
they have applied for a
special use permit on the recommendation of the Burial Council and the Planning Director that, that
extraction is not a permitted use within the Ag district then they're required to get the permit. And you
know this County has a lousy policy that's not written anywhere in the book that says go ahead and, and
continue your activity until you get your permit. We've got illegal vacation rentals all over this County
that are operating illegally on that very same policy.
And I would like to note that a grading permit does not just address grading and grubbing, it also allows
for excavation. So and it doesn't say, you know, you can excavate but you can't sell your excavation, I
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mean there's no condition on excavation. It's only how much at one time you can excavate. And you
know we see mass grading pennits all the time that allow, you know, thousands and thousands of cubic
yards to be excavated whether it's sand or what not.
At Maui Lani they excavated 9,OOO-plus tons of sand out of Maui Lani on a grading permit and that's
resource extraction and it was used for another purpose. And then of course what they excavated they
filled in with soil. So I think that, you know, it, it leaves all of us in a very, you know, tenuous position.
It leaves Arneron in a tenuous position, it leaves everybody here who has a concern about our resource,
our sand resource and this decision-making body not to have adequate legal counsel. Back in August we
sent a request as to what parameters this Council might use to prohibit excavation of this resource and
exportation of this resource. We still haven't heard back.
And at our last meeting I pointed out that we have a State statute that prohibits the mining of sand on
beaches. So why can't we prohibit the mining of sands inland? Especially if it's beach sand, dune sand
that originated from the beach? Still we have no answer. So whose interest is being looked out for
here? That's all I have to say. I'm interested in the presentation.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and thank you very much. And these are some things, too, that because we
need to get the information, some of the changes may actually occur and we may make
recommendations out of here that do involve changes in the grading ordinance that specify, you know, if
it's for a specific purpose then, you know, it, it would have, let's say, at least to corne before the Council
or some body for some type of review. So those are options that we have available.
Members, at this point what, what questions would you like to know? We have the people here from
Arneron; we have the people from Hawaiian Cement; we have Ms. Zoe Norcross; Ms., Mr. Hanzawa
whose firm and actually, Howard were you engaged yourself in doing the "Sand Quantification Study"?
Or was it someone on your staff at that time?
MR. HANZAWA: No. I, I did the, the report myself with a lot of input from many others who, including
LelnellI and Ameron
Norcross
got a
are

resource "'AJJau';:»"'vu,
a
long it
actually
the resources or use
the resources. And I would like to hear
you and then I
would also like to hear from either Mr. Yoshizawa or Mr. Horneman what their projection is, because I
think if we understand what we're looking at and how long a period of time we have that's going to be a
big motivator. So if you could start, Howard, and then just say your name for the record.
MR. HANZA WA: This is Howard. The length of time, Ms. Chairman, was based upon what was projected at
that time of the study, about a year ago. on the usage rates. and the usage rates included the use on Maui
and the, the export of the material to Honolulu. And it was also based upon what we saw in regards to
the available land from which the sand could be taken out from. As you know, it's over the years the
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lands on which sand were made available from have been developed over. whether it's by, by parks or
housing projects or. ..but, you know, it's dwindled over the years, so the source, sources have become
limited. So as we had projected the usage of about 300,000 tons of sand per year and, you know, this
may have changed. The use by the concrete companies due to various factors may change over time,
and, but this was a projection, like I say, about a year ago.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you. Howard, when you say 300,000 tons a year, is that total from
Maui County or Maui island rather? Or is that just this one area that we're concerned with?
MR. HANZAW A: That's the totaL
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Across the County? I mean the island ofMaui?
MR. HANZAW A: The. across the, including the usage from Maui and the export to Honolulu.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: But not just from this one site that we're talking about?
MR. HANZAWA: Oh!
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Where the special use permit is ...
MR. HANZAW A: No. No. It was from Ameron and Hawaiian Cement in totaL
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And, and the permit that we're concerned with is Hawaiian Cement where
they're taking their sand? Ameron is already permitted where they're taking their, their sand? So, so
it's two sites that we're talking about that totals 300,000, approximately 300,000 tons a year? Can you
break down that down to ...or maybe Mr. Yoshizawa can tell us how much Ameron is exporting or
eXl[ra,~urlg

a
tons

ANDERSON:

a

ago?

MR. HANZAW A: Yeab; right.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so it's likely it's stepped up since then?
CHAIR JOHNSON: And then we'll, if it's okay we'll let, would you like to answer first, Mr. Horneman? And
then Mr. Yoshizawa.
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MR. HORNEMAN: Well, since the study its actually gone the other way. Yeah, it's probably, right now we're
using it only here on Maui and we use about, for our concrete we use about 7,000 tons a month.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Seven thousand a month?
MR. HORNEMAN: Yes, ma'am.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay.
MR. HORNEMAN: You're welcome.
CHAIR JOHNSON: And then, before I let you say something, Ms. Guild, we'll, we'll just let Mr. Yoshizawa.
Eric you want to answer, also?
MR. YOSHIZAW A: This is Eric Yoshizawa. The projection that was revealed in the sand study is reasonably
accurate for the current activity and reserve we have now, it doesn't speak to anything else in the future.
But five to seven years was the expected duration. I will later provide some comment on that as well.
And because it does ...
CHAIR JOHNSON: Could you speak into the mike, Mr. Yoshizawa, it's hard for the mike to pick up, just
speak directly into it. Just put it as close to your mouth as you can.
MR. YOSHIZA W A: Should I repeat?
CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. Yeah. If you just repeat that.
MR. YOSHIZA W A: Alright. The, the sand volume that we are projecting is five to seven years out on the
current reserve.
it
not speak to
contracts or
one
we
tons

MR.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Do you have any other sand resources, are you guys exploring to see if
there's any other sand resources out there?
MR. YOSHIZAWA: We will probably be able to define a second supplemental site perhaps within the next six
to nine months. Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So you feel that there are other sand sources out there that are of equal
quality to this sand?
MR. YOSHIZAW A: I think the quality is a more difficult issue to address because, you know, we are not able
to see an area until we get into it. But I think we are of the opinion that the current reserve is high
yielding. And I'll speak to some of those issues if I have an opportunity later on. But this industry does
take the effort to separate a premium grade of sand from other sands and, and is the, perhaps the only
group of users I'm aware of that does take that interest, and, and the best of grades of sand can be used
for the broader applications like fill. I will also point out that there are other users beyond the two
companies here that do occupy a large amount of movement of material on and off the site. In the
normal course of construction activity there is a borrow activity going on in which developments that
have an excess contribute to developments that have a deficiency. And that constitutes a heavy
exchange. It's, it's on a larger volume than the numbers we're talking about.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Really. That's interesting. I wonder how we could find out about that.
It's interesting that youCHAIR JOHNSON: Mr. Yoshizawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --know about it.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. You know, if, and if you do have, then I'll let Ms. Guild, you know, answer. But
do you have any information? I know you spoke that you would like to address some issues and I'd like
to give you that opportunity if the Members don't mind. Because I know that his firm, Mr. Yoshizawa's
firm is also concerned about the depletion here for Maui. And if you could address that issue, too and
what your firm may be willing to do to help, I guess, really stave off some of the concerns that we have.
And just use your mike, please.
MR. YOSHIZA WA: We have a bullet-point handout if I might refer to that and with your indulgence would
like to go through some that.
policy,
Discussion on Maui Sand",

reason
on that,
contributing cause,
over
development and the activity covering the resource
limits future access to these resources. And
what we observe is that typically the developmental activity takes place along coastal or coastal plain
areas, because those are the areas that tend to get developed first. And in so doing there is a resource
beneath but the access to them becomes limited progressively over time.
The next point that they hope to raise is that the sand tends to come from areas under development, and
these areas have been, have building plans, there are engineering schemes for how much material is
required to create the contours of the development. And the extent to which material is viewed as
excess that would normally be available to the market, available to other users, too, would then be the
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amount of volume that would be, become available. And in this, in this case if it were talking about
sand this is the quantity that becomes available. So it is subject to the constraints of the development
plan on a given parcel.
Within this a developer typically has a certain period of time in which he's attempting upon entitlement
to get his construction activity completed. This window of time we've observed typically can be 12 to
18 months but when, the window closes then the sand lying beneath the parcel or the sand available on
that parcel also availability closes.
We have seen that the consumption or the usage rate can affect the yield or the life of a given sand
reserve. But we have not observed that to be at a level that ever made sand availability questioned for
any other use. So the fact that these other uses are going on, as you see currently, has not denied anyone
interested in purchasing or acquiring beach sand for that use up to this point in time.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Such as Ms. Guild.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Did you have a question?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No, I said, ''just such as Ms. Guild".
CHAIR JOHNSON: Oh. Oh. Right. Right. Right.
MR. YOSHIZA W A: And to some extent that the industry has promoted its use in that and we have worked
with the Department of Land and Natural Resources. Some of us sit on the Sand Study Committee to
help promote that. Specifically, the concrete industry is a little bit different from other users, because it
has internal requirements on what constitutes concrete grade sand. These specifications tend to also
parallel what might be desirable in the way of beach replenishment.
So there is an effort, as, as sand is being excavated, to do a separation and to isolate what would
allow
grades
sand for
constitute the
grade of sand for these purposes
term ~'P""p,.
general COJlstJruc:tlon
to I,;min~~t;;
sand
sand. We have to search it out.
still,
were to
rel()mneJ1t progress over
find it is a fairly wide band of material that can be defined as sand. It gets excavated, it gets moved from
one site to another.
We can characterize the role that companies like ours play--I include Hawaiian Cement in that--we, we
play, I believe, an intermediary role between the marketplace and, and the developer. Our activity
allows us to put sand on the shelf for our own use, it also makes it available on the shelf for market
requirements. And in so doing we extend the timeframe beyond the developer's short window to a
larger window of time.
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I would just take a short moment to explain that in the five to seven year projection of sand we had a
relatively narrow window to pull that out, it was less than two years. That was something we paid for
upfront, we covered archeological monitoring costs, the, the entitlement cost, permitting, and such. And
in so doing, assisted in covering the type of costs that would normally be passed from a developer to the
lot owners, so there was some subsidy on this project by that activity. .., (end of tape, start 2A at
2:53 p.rn.). .. My presence here is really to serve as a resource on this subject. There's some
perspective perhaps that we can lend on the industry. We hope to be a partner in a solution. In the case
I can specifically of our company where we do have some sand reserves in inventory that can be
earmarked for future use.
But you know like it or not, I think it's a progressive activity of windows opening and closing for sand
availability that is something that is harder for the market to put its finger on and always draw sand upon
request. And the two companies here take an approach that helps to extend that window of time and
prolong what might be available to the market. Whether we participate or not we believe that window
still opens and closes.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you very much. Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you for that, Mr. Yoshizawa, I appreciate that overview. You
mentioned a Sand Study Committee that you guys are participating on. Who, can you tell us a little bit
more about that?
MR. YOSHIZAW A: Okay. Briefly, Department of Land and Natural Resources had convened a panel. There
were represented a wide body of, of individuals from across the State just looking at the general issue of
beach replenishment. Typical, what might constitute useful sources of sand in the future and how they
might appropriate a limited amount of funds that were given that Department for this purpose and what
they might do. And the interest was do we, would the group, should the group commission a study to,
say, look into offshore sources, what about inland sources, and how to they spread it out?
perspective

could be loe.ntlllea
there were two companies there who spoke to the subject offshore deposits that might be returned to,
to the shoreline. So it was a general discussion and that panel, as I know, would continue its, its work.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: It, it does continue to be a body that's functioning? Or is this like, the
Sand Study Committee a one-time only committee or is, is it still ongoing?
MR. YOSHIZAWA: There was one introductory meeting earlier this year. I don't know of a future plan
beyond that.
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COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: And, and who from DLNR headed, headed this up? Do you know who
headed this up from DLNR? Sam Lemmo? Was Sam Lemmo?
MR. YOSHIZAWA:
individual.

Sam Lemmo was involved, perhaps Zoe Norcross might be familiar with the, the

CHAIR JOHNSON: Zoe?
MS. NORCROSS-NU'U: Zoe Norcross-Nu'u. Yeah, I was, actually I was traveling at the time, I didn't attend
the meeting myself, but it was Sam Lemmo and Dolan Eversole mostly that convened it.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you. Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Madam Chair, thank you very much. I guess the question would be for
Mr. Hanzawa. With the study that was done, other than, than providing us with the current information
of the reality of limitations, the reality that there is, does not exist an infInite source. Was it also the
intent, once these problems had been recognized, that there was going to be another part of the study like
how to address with the next phase in meeting with the limitations of sand for both the larger users, in
terms of looking at options and alternatives that might be available to them, in terms of the creation of a
potential .. .I don't know what to call it but perhaps a stakeholders' group that would be inclusive of
industry, beach users, et cetera that would actually come together and deal with what happens next?
MR. HANZAW A: This is Howard. Councilman Mateo, I guess the answer is no. When Public Works scoped
out this project it was just to quantify the resource that was left at that time. So there was no further
items in the scope of work to go beyond that.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay_ So, Madam Chair, my comment would be as the discussion started
earlier with Member Anderson, you
I
know
wheels at this particular point
to wu.,-u...,,,,',:).

work
specific areas, but
is no next step or
least start to kind
lead towards or lean towards. So
problems that exist.

you
we need to at
you know, reiterating the

And I think it'll be necessary for us to perhaps have maybe Madam Chair help us set the direction so
that we can try to actually come up with, with a resolve versus continuing to just recognize the problem.
Because I think that's the easiest part of it all because we now know, thanks to the study, that we, we do
have shortcomings, and I think the necessity of us to continue to preserve our own resource, you know,
here on our, on this island. So I don't know how effective we are today recognizing and talking about
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the problem that we all know exists without any kind of assurances that the Hawaiian Cement or
Ameron, you know, will be part of the stakeholder group to take us to the next level. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes. And, and one of the reasons why I thought it was important for us to have this
discussion is because I want to see some kind of concrete action. But first of all recognizing that we
may not have legal authority. Knowing the problem that exists, knowing that a lot of our valuable
resources may be going off island. I had an opportunity at least to visit with the gen ... , Mr. Yoshizawa
from Ameron and there does seem to be a willingness on the part of the industry, and you also heard
from Mr. Horneman that they are not continuing to at least deplete the resource. So I think what's
valuable from my perspective is know where we are now. Has there been a change since the time that
the study was first done? Because I as your Chair was getting conflicting information. I was concerned
with that conflicting information that due to the acceleration of development on the island as well as
sand that was being exported to Oahu that we may have perhaps only two years left.
So by bringing the panel forward I want you to hear, I want you to get the answers to your questions so
that we can then make a determination with the stakeholders if they are to be included or if there is
legislative recourse that we do have if there is not the ability to work with the individuals who we have
before us. And what I have heard in my meetings was that there does appear to be a willingness of the
industry to work with us, because if there is no cooperative or collaborative effort and perhaps
continuing to have some kind of stakeholder group the clock is ticking, and we cannot afford to let this
continue.
So I think that at least having some direction and perhaps one of the things that we might do is consider
having a proposal whereby there's some memorandum of understanding from the industry as to what
their purpose and intent is, whether they're willing to stockpile, what their commitment is to the
community, because I think it's really important that we know that. And the sooner we know it, the
better.
We have our concerns, you know, also being raised about beach replenishment. So my thrust in doing
this is to
out where you want go,
to develop a stakeholders' group so that we can bring back
co()t)eratlon of
to
aggressively.
is possible.
You've heard from Mr. Souki and I'm sure after this meeting there will be additional focus. But that's
where I'm looking to you as Members for direction. And that's why I brought the resource people here
today. So that at least we could determine what that direction is that we do want to take.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. So, so Madam Chair, because this was prepared for, prepared for the
Department of Public Works and Environmental Management, upon receipt of the, the report has the
Chair, has Madam Chair in communication with Public Works to ask them their comments on the review
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and their projections in terms of how to address the, the, the issues that the study actually provides us
with?
CHAIR JOHNSON: Well, and, and Ms. Norcross-Nu'u can address that but basically the individual that was
available as a resource to me from Public Works was Mr. Parsons, because he was intimately involved in
this and he was the one also that wanted to see some type of action and what could be done. And I know
Mr. Carroll also has looked into this issue before with a great deal of frustration which was expressed to
me about well, if we can't get there from here.
So at this point what I think I would like to, just as your Chair, I would like to see some kind of
consensus as to how we can constructively collaborate with the two entities that are really extracting
sand and then perhaps develop something along the lines of what issue was raised by
Councilmember Anderson with regard to the actual grading and looking at those ordinances. Because
while we're Parks and Economic Development we're the ones who are the recipient of the study, so if
we're going to make a recommendation, if we're going to pass a resolution urging that the Planning
Commission.. .if what Mr. Souki said is correct that's another thing that we can do. If they're going
through the special use permit process ,our conditional use permit process I feel it's really important that
we make our wishes known if there's something that we want to see or if there's conditions that we want
placed. So those right now are some of our options.
And if you want myself as well as Staff to work on some type of resolution or forming a stakeholder
group to develop a MOU that's fine. But I just want to nail it down of where you as Committee
Members would like this to go. Because more than likely the initial step is going to be with the only
permit that's pending. And hat to me is what I wanted to reveal to you.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No. Thank you very much, Madam Chair. And I appreciate that and I support
the, I support the Chair's intent in trying to provide us with, with the most, I guess, current information
from the, the people who really are in the industry and know best. And I think that's kind of like what
I'm kind of hinging on, you know, these are the professionals, these are the people who supposed to
know best they.
should know the
and out the available resources that they're using because
us.
it is
or
it is

to see,
some
provide us,
we can take a look at so we can rl"'-t,"'........
know, based on the information and their own calculations what might
more correct method to, to
proceed with. Rather than me, who would be a non-professional, all I know about sand is like you know
it feels good wet. You know, so you know I need that kind of technical information, so we know how to
make an intelligent decision at this particular point for myself. Thank you, Madam Chair.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. We do have--and Ms. Norcross-Nu'u just handed to me, too--we do have
Communication October 5, 2006, the "Maui Inland Sand Resource Study". And we do have
recommendations from the office of the Mayor basically as to possible actions that we could take. This
is from Mr. Parsons and this is in your binder. Besides the, you know, things that has been suggested.
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I'm basically just pulling from my recollection of my conversation with Mr. Parsons, but it is here in
writing.
And, Zoe, if, is there something, Zoe, that you would like to add in? You know keep your copy for the
reference and you know if you have any recommendation at this point, too. And just use the microphone
when you respond. Because I know that Rob is not here. He would have recommendations for us for
consideration. He's in Wisconsin.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Oh.
MS. NORCROSS-NU'U: This is Zoe Norcross-Nu'u. Yes. Rob prepared this list of, of recommendations on
behalf of the office of the Mayor. His first recommendation was to act quickly being that there is a
limited amount of time that, that I guess oftentimes convening working groups and, and such can take a
long time while, several months anyway before there is recommendations that come out of that.
His second recommendation was to issue a Council resolution recognizing the need for resource
conservation. It says such a resolution would provide the foundation for a future ordinance to restrict
the export of sand and to stockpile beach-quality sand for replenishment projects. While an ordinance
would need to be carefully crafted and researched it is likely that a resolution could move forward more
quickly. And he says a moratorium may be a useful interim strategy. He also recommends guiding the
Planning Department to proceed with transmitting special use permit applications to the Planning
Commission as soon as possible. That's an action that could probably be taken.
The other actions are slightly larger scale, longer-term type considerations like budget appropriations for
beach replenishment, budget appropriations for studying offshore sand resources, which I concur would
be a really valuable investment at this point. But it would take quite a considerable amount of money to
determine or to basically to fund a study to determine if there is suitable or extensive enough offshore
sand resources and where they might be located. Other recommendations to amend the grading
ordinance to consider other impacts besides drainage, and that's something that has been discussed a
little
today.
again might take a
bit longer.

with this.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes. Thank you. And, Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You know, I'm sort of, of the mind that Member Mateo started out with is
I feel like we're spinning our wheels here. And I just want to bring us home to why this is so important.
You know the Beach Management Plan that was adopted as County policy in 1997. It was a pretty
intensive study and, and actually it was a compilation of other studies that had been done previous to
that.
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And there was a study done that Dennis Wang and Chip Fletcher did in 1992, that reviewed our
shorelines Statewide and made a determination that from 1949 to 1989, suggested, suggesting that
62 percent of Maui shoreline--'89, that's a while ago--since 1989, 62 percent of our shoreline has been
eroding at 1.25 feet a year. Somebody might want to add that up. Because at, at the year 1989. it was
determined that 30 percent of the sandy beaches that once existed on Maui are gone. So this is very
critical to the future of our economy, to the future viability of this island, to the, to the long-term
protection of those shoreline properties including hotels that are going to be suffering from this 1.25 feet
of erosion, not to mention this was done before current understanding of global warming was quantified.
So it's worse than this and if we don't have that sand to shore up the shoreline, as Ms. Guild was telling
us about, what's going to happen to our economy? What's going to happen to the recreational resource
we have that makes Maui so special? There's only one other island in this State that has more beaches
than Maui and that's Kauai. Isn't it Kauai? Zoe, it's Kauai? That's our calling card, Madam Chair.
And we can sit here and yammer all we want about, you know, what can we do? In the meantime
1.25 feet of shoreline is eroding every year. Sand is being exported and used for other purposes
everyday. And we already have a study saying, we're at the tipping point and it could be worse than we
know. This, I'm sorry, I'm very upset about this. Because you know we've been talking about this since
1997, we adopted the policy in 1997. What has this County done? Not a damn thing.
It's only because of private citizens who are taking, stepping forward and taking, you know, the helm
that beaches are being saved on this island at their expense for a public beach. You know Mr. Carroll
back in 2001, tried to address this issue and, 'cause he thought this was a problem then, too, most likely
from this Beach Management Study. You know in 1997, 1998 was--I don't know--the year of the reef or
the year of the ocean or whatever it was, and this Council and this County spent a lot of time focusing on
our ocean resources and our near-shore waters and adopted this as County policy among other things.
So it was in the forefront. We heard it at conferences. The Planning Department, David Blayne was the
planner at the time. He made a big issue of it and since then ... (shhhk) ... nothing has happened. As
Administrations change, things get
on
shelf, other priorities take,
the lead, and people forget
how important

some
whole issue that was
was
or not we
prohibiting the export or excavation of this sand for purposes such as construction when it is a vital
resource to the economic viability of Maui's future.
And it was addressed as if, it was addressed using Article 1, Section 8 of the U.S. Constitution that
provides in part that, that Congress shall have the power to regulate commerce among, among the States;
in other words, you can't prohibit interstate commerce. We're not talking about interstate commerce,
this sand has never been shipped to Micronesia as far as I know or the mainland. We're talking about
exporting it from our island for other uses, and for that matter we're talking about excavating it as a
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resource, an inland dune bank for construction purposes. So as far as I'm concerned this opinion from
Corporation Counsel means nothing.
And the fact that we've been waiting since August for an opinion based on the fact that the State
Legislature many years ago adopted a policy or adopted a statute prohibiting the mining of beach sand.
Why can't we prohibit the mining of inland sand? I don't see any constitutional problem at all, it's a
resource that we need. Now, you know, Madam Chair, if it means .. .I fmd it totally irresponsible that
Corporation Counsel has not responded to this request since August knowing that these people have a
permit pending, knowing that this sand study shows that we're at risk of losing our resource. What are
they doing up there?
If it takes this Council hiring special counsel, Madam Chair, to draft legislation that is legally defensible,
that's what we need to do. And we need to do it immediately. Now, we heard from Mr. Yoshikawa, or
Yoshizawa, excuse me, there's various grades of sand, but there's only really one grade of sand generally
speaking. I'm sure there's, you know, a variable of a grade of sand that is beach-quality sand. And we
also know that, that's the best sand for cement mixing but it doesn't mean they have to have the best.
Their cement is not going to fall apart if they use a second grade.
And as a matter of fact we were on Molokai yesterday, Madam Chair, and we approved a quarry and a
batch plant over there for Molokai keep their construction industry going and they had a big pile of sand
over there. You know, Molokai doesn't have its own sand, they don't have inland sand resources. It has
to come from here, but it's not beach-quality sand. They're using inland sand but it's not beach quality,
it's a lesser quality. Why can't we do that here and reserve that sand that is the only sand available, you
know, for beach-quality nourishment?
We gotta take some action, you know, instead of studying it to death; in the meantime, we'll lose our
window of opportunity. So you know I appreciate all of these people coming and, and, and sharing their
mana'o and their concern, and I'm very pleased to hear that Hawaiian Cement has reduced the amount
of sand that they're taking out. It shows, you know, a consideration for the community and for the value
this resource.
but
other places to look, and, and why
we do that?
can't the
County
worse.
you
was
saying?
sitting
partying
We're all sitting around talking about this to death, you know, and its been 10 years since we've known
this was a problem. So I'm not satisfied with no response from Corp. Counsel. As a matter of fact, you
know, a resolution, fme, has no force and effect of law whatsoever. And where do we get off telling the
Planning Commission what we want them to do on a special use permit, they're not idiots, they got the
same study we do. The Planning Director can tell them, you know what, we only have so much sand.
Are you going to let them keep taking it?
You know, we have no legal authority to be telling the Planning Commission what to do. They're a
legal authority in and of themselves and unless it's in our County Code we got no business telling them
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what to do. A resolution means nothing. Let's draft some legislation. And you know what, if it's not
legal, we'll find out; but in the meantime, we've done something proactive.
So, you know, and I hate to bring this up because I don't want to, I don't want to open up another
opportunity, but you know offshore sand is available in various areas, and the coral reef
initiatives ...Zoe, I'm sure you're familiar with them. They've been funded over many years with
Federal dollars and they have done plotting of the ocean floor all around Maui. And guess what they
found? They found that there's an algae growing that produces sand. This is a whole new species they
never knew existed. It's a calcareous type of algae plant that grows and as it disintegrates, it produces
sand. There's a whole bunch of sand out there. So...whether or not it's beach quality, you know,
studies have to be done. " .(end of tape, start 2B at 3:23 p.rn.). .. But I think we need to take
something proactive in our authority, Madam Chair. And as far as I see, you know, the only authority we
have is to adopt legislation and to fund the money for whatever other necessary studies need to be done.
But you know if the industry can find a way to back off from using this beach-quality sand and use a
lesser quality of sand and find a way to make the mix work, then, you know, what's more
important--beaches for future generations or perfect concrete to build with? I would ask for them to
think about that. Thank you.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Mr. Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. Let's see. The first time that I did this was June 8, 2001,
when I first took office and worked with Corporation Counsel and tried to get a bill drafted to have some
control over the removal of the sand. At that time, Corporation Counsel cited this. I met with the one
named and I did ... and after some other discussion, they felt that they could not in good faith draft the
bill because it would not, it would be illegal. And we had a lot of other things and of course I just came,
we all just came into office at that time so that was pretty much the end of it.
Hindsight 20120 I wish I had, had the seventh floor draft the bill and proceeded with it. But it just goes
to show that it's not easy, and perhaps sometimes the advice from the experts is not always or our
attorneys is not always the final word or shouldn't always
the
word.
although
not
going to be
too
longer I do hope
to
something

JOHNSON:
at
any
panelists like to
or? Barbara has been sitting patiently. Please, Barbara Guild.
MS. GUILD: Well. I appreciate Michelle's-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Outburst! ... (chuckled) ...
OTHERS: ... (chuckled) ...
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MS. GUILD: --dramatic approach because I was cheering her the whole way. I've been, as soon as I
recognized that what we needed was adding material to the shoreline and that it worked. I had made
appointments to visit with all the current Council Members and Mr. Morrow was on the Council at that
time. He very enthusiastically recognized that we needed to do something about protecting this, as they
call it, the resource extraction, the natural resource extraction and having it sent to the other islands,
especially to Oahu. And then he was killed an airplane crash and the whole thing fell apart and I was so
despondent about that, because I thought he was the one Council Member that I met with and spent
several hours each time with him that understood it completely that we really needed to have this
material. Okay.
First of all, I mean that's just an aside, but complimenting Michelle on, that something truly needs to be
done. This item on this bullet thing that Hawaiian Cement gave, which is No.1, 2, 3, 4,5, No.6, where
it says that the concrete industry separates the sand by its physical characteristics. And I'm very aware
of what is necessary, being a mechanical engineer, about the quality of the sand that is necessary for
good concrete. I would like to say that until 2003, so from 1995 until 2003, well, actually till 2001, we
used sand, anything we could get. There was no such thing as beach-quality sand. And it doesn't make
any difference what you put in the shoreline as long as it is moveable material. You can put gravel in,
you could be, put up cobbles, you could put rocks that were the size as, as big as, as a volleyball or even
larger, and the ocean will carry it into the near shore. Then what you do is you add sand or if there's
sand mixed with what you have the beach-quality sands ends up on the beach, it's nature's way of
building a beach. And beaches erode down to the point where they are coral rubble, or they are cobbles,
or they are just rocks.
And you need a foundation to build those beaches and so the fact that we have now been restricted to
using what is quote, quote "beach-quality sand" in my opinion is a bunch of hooey, because we tried it
for how many years and we ended up with lovely beach sand on the beach. The stuff that you put in that
fills in, as Michelle earlier said to you, are the pukas and it fills in the near shore, that's your
foundational material for building a beach. And so if the people who need certain quality for their
concrete they can use that, because we can use what is called "select overburden", that used to have
kiawe trees it and have aU kinds of junk
the ocean sorts it out. It has a wonderful
making
a
out
I
to <lIrIf1r.,.,,,,,,

no one
very interested beaches
over
is a
school
she, they have an arrangement with the, with the cruise ships where they go and pick up people that
want to take beginning windsurfing lessons down at Kanaha Beach. And so she goes down to the cruise
ships several times a week to pick up these students.
And she has noticed the increase in the number of barges that are going out, now whether they, whether
that's some other company other than Hawaiian Cement and Ameron who is exporting the sand, but also
not only the number of barges has increased but also the size of the barges that they are using to send off
of this island. And so we are very concerned and I don't mean to, I don't have any actual data but if the,
if the report that was done a year ago, as my colleague here next to me said then things have changed
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from last year. And also, we note, she said she noticed after the sand study was made public that the
increase in the number of barges that were leaving Maui was increasing, too. And I thought that I
needed to put that on the record. And that's why I wanted to speak.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you, Barbara. Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you for that, Barbara. I think we need to kind of clarify when
we're talking about beach quality. That term has come up through DLNR's procedures to nourish a
beach. And they feel that in order for sand to be beach quality it can't have sediment in it or a certain
percent of sediment. Because they feel that the sediment will destroy the reefs. Could Zoe maybe
address that for, for us?
MS. GUILD: Well, may I address that?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Sure. And then maybe have Zoe sayMS. GUILD: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --a little bit more about it.
MS. GUILD: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Because I understand what you're saying. You're saying the first batch,
if the beach is sore, is sorely eroded the first batch of sand you put down is going to end up out, you
know, in the near shore waters filling up the coral rubble. And that as you add it over the years or
months or however you go about doing it that eventually the sand that ends up on the beach is going to
be the last sand that you put into the mix. (NOTE: Ms. Guild is shaking her head) No?
MS. GUILD: No. Nature sorts the sand by grain size and so the heavier stuff goes

MS.

near shore and the

on
years because that the reason
is so
in,
the State of Hawaii.
situation in most cases and particularly in our case is that the coral is a mile
offshore with a channel between. And I have had authorities from Scripps Institute in San Diego look
into this and there is no way that the, that the fines that are in the sand that we add gets to the reef. It is
too far offshore in almost every case. And it's ...

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON : You mean, almost every beach-MS. GUILD: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --has a reef that far off?
MS. GUILD: Yes. Well it's far enough away so that the fines that are in the sand do not make it to have any
effect on the reef, and also from studies that I've looked into on the Great Coral Reef in Australia where
they have studied reefs that have had a lot of sediment put on them that the coral actually migrates away
or it is able to grow up through it. And they find that it does not have a deleterious effect. And so I
know that as a fact as well.
And I know that the sand that we put in for the first six or seven years, I guess, was, had a lot of
sediment in it, because I have all the samples in my laboratory and you can look at them all and it had
more fines than we are allowed to use now. And I disagree intensely with the Department of Health,
who are the ones who are so concerned about the turbidity in the water and the fines that are in the sand.
Okay. So now, I'll let Zoe Norcross.
MS. NORCROSS-NU'U: Thanks, Barbara. This is Zoe Norcross-Nu'u. The, basically the restrictions on
beach-quality sand are from the Department of Health, Clean Water Branch. They're responsible for
administering the Federal Clean Water Act. According to their regulations they, they're very resistant to
allowing beach replenishment to take place because sand is considered to be a pollutant. Any turbidity
is considered to be pollution. So they feel very reluctant to permit beach replenishment because it's
essentially violation of their rules, which prohibit any kind of allowing or permitting any kind of activity
that will lead to pollution, which is essentially they call sand a pollutant and any increase in turbidity is
pollution. So it's really, that, that is a Department of Health issue.
And actually as an aside, currently, anybody applying for beach replenishment on the West Side of Maui
all the way from Lahaina up to Honokowai would be denied permission, because that whole body of
water is considered to be a water quality limited segment. And there's not allowed to be any beach
replenishment or any activities that would potentially further or have any impacts on water quality in
that whole stretch of beach. And it's, there's quite a number of locations up there that would like to
proceed beach replenishment and right now their, their hands are a little bit tied. So that's another
complex
go on,

I

MS.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --ask
clarification?
saying that
considers sand a
pollutant and that it has to be clean in their definition of clean in order to uphold the Clean Water Act?
MS. NORCROSS-NU'U: Even clean sand is considered to be a pollutant. Any sand being put into the water.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You know I fmd that, Madam Chair, outrageous considering the fact that
they're allowing tour boats to dump their sewage in the same water unbelievable .. (chuckled) . .. You
can continue now.
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OTHERS: .. , (chuckled) ...
MS. NORCROSS-NU'U: I would like to also just quickly describe a study that we did. It was initiated by
myself in conjunction with the Kana'i A Nalu Condominium Association in Maalaea to specifically look
at the issue of impacts to water quality in the marine environment that result from beach replenishment.
We monitored water quality on a monthly basis for nine months leading up to the beach replenishment
project, every day during the sand placement, and then following the sand placement for, I think, another
two, maybe three months. And what we found was that prior to the beach replenishment the water
quality at Kana'i A Nalu was so poor that we were hitting our faces on the bottom of the reef before we
could see it. It was, the visibility was, there was no visibility between January and June, essentially.
During the sand placement, which took place towards the end of June in 2003, I believe it was, there was
an additional turbidity plume that formed off shore and they used the sand from Maui Lalli area. There
was a significant visible turbidity plume that you could see during the sand placement so essentially it
did get worse during that period. But approximately one week following the sand placement, the
completion of the sand placement, the water quality had improved to the point where visibility was
practically unlimited.
And that was a surprise to all of us, I didn't expect to see that result. And what we think happened was
something called, an effect call turbidity suppression where the sand actually went out and covered up
some of the muddy clay areas that had been exposed and in, in so doing prevented these muddy areas
from being stirred up. And as a result our fish counts increased dramatically, and I think it wasn't
because there was more fish but just 'cause we could see them. And, so we in addition to water quality
we did fish counts, we did marine video transects and we did beach profiles, now, and suspended
sediment analyses as well.
The beach profiles were particularly interesting because at Kana'i A Nalu there is a fringing reef off
shore, it's very shallow. In the center of the property there's a channel that goes out through the
property that's quite deep, or sorry, that goes out through the offshore region that's quite deep. So we
were essentially measuring
distance
months between the seawall or
which was the
out to
edge
reef began. We
that
move out on
was because
waves break over
reefs
move unu<u',n
move offshore throughout the sand channels.
So when the sand was placed it moved along the shoreline and then essentially it moved out through the
sand channel but it did not cover up the reef. Now a student of mine that was involved in the study also
took water quality measurements at Sugar Cove, which was considered to be a replenished beach area,
and she also took water quality measurements at an adjacent beach in front of the airport that has had no
impacts. And consistently found that the water quality at the airport beach was always worse than it was
at Sugar Cove. So that, for, for, for people that are arguing that the water quality at Sugar Cove isn't
perfect that, it's not perfect at many places along the North Shore and that have not been affected.
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One other thing I'd to mention is that beach replenishment, in places like Sugar Cove, works very, very
well because there's natural headlands on both ends that trap the sand in the bay. At Kana'i A Nalu it
wasn't so successful because it's a long, straight stretch of shoreline and with nothing to hold that
replenished sand in place it just kind of traveled down the shoreline and, and fed subsequent properties
and who were benefited greatly from Kana'i A NaIu's input of sand. On such straight shoreline
segments sand replenishment would be more effective in conjunction with shoreline structures such as
groins that would help to retain the sand in place. Now groins are going to get probably a lot of
resistance and may have some difficulty as far as environmental permitting is concerned. But I just
wanted to bring that up part of the reason that Sugar Cove has been so successful is that naturally it's the
type of physical setting that would be very conducive to retaining the sand that was placed there.
As far as comments regarding what to do now, well first of all, I just wanted to make a comment that I
really appreciate, it's been great working with Hawaiian Cement and Ameron. They clearly recognize
that there is, that there is an issue here, and they are being very sensitive and trying to do what they can
to help all sides of this and so that it can be a win-win situation. We're very short on time and as
Michelle pointed out, there are new considerations such as sea level rise that we need to take into
consideration that, we've shown that for the last 100 years on Maui the average rate of beach erosion is
approximately one foot per year. That's the average for Maui sandy shorelines.
Now over the last 100 years that we've gotten this average of one foot per year, sea level has risen eight
inches. Now the forecast for sea level for the next century is 36 inches, and so you can imagine that
with the tripled rates of sea level rise we're going to probably see triple rates of erosion in conjunction
with that. Or those numbers are very difficult, it's very, very difficult to accurately predict sea level rise,
those are 36 inches is something, three feet is something that is being used more and more frequently by
sea level rise scientists. And so that's where I get that number from. If that does happen we could
expect to see up to an average of 300 feet of shoreline retreat on sandy shoreline areas in the next
century which is quite considerable. Because of that we may need to turn increasingly towards beach
replenishment. Did you have a question?

MS. NORCROSS-NU'U: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: 'Cause I think that's important for people to understand.
MS. NORCROSS-NU'U: Okay. It could actually be more like 400 feet. But anyhow.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Just the dynamics of it.
MS. NORCROSS-NU'U: Yeah. Okay. There's something called an erosion multiplier, which was originally
coined, a term coined by Dr. Beach, Steven Leatherman who every year makes the rounds and
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determines what America's best beaches are, and we've had a number of beaches on Maui that have
fallen under that category. He's determined that for every single unit of vertical sea level rise you get
150 units of shoreline retreat. Now I was curious to see if, how that would apply to Maui. Does that
number hold true? And so looking at the data in the last century, we've had eight inches of sea level
rise. During that same time we've had 100 feet of, or sorry, from Chip Fletcher's erosion study we've
seen that the average rate of shoreline retreat for Maui beaches is one foot per year. Okay. So over
100 years that would be an average of 100 feet of erosion as an average amount of shoreline retreat for
Maui's sandy beaches.
So if you have eight inches of sea level rise that have resulted in 100 feet of shoreline retreat then if we
have 36 inches of sea level rise, if you do the math, the corresponding amount of shoreline retreat could
be something like up to 450 sheet [sic], 450 feet. However, not all of that erosion has been due to sea
level rise. There's also been human impacts like sand mining that have contributed to that number. But
nevertheless it has been scientifically shown by this coastal scientist, very, very prominent, famous
coastal scientist Dr. Steven Leatherman that you do, there is a factor of 150 times. And for Maui I think
based on these numbers it's closer to 125 times, but basically for every single unit, like for one inch of
sea level rise you'll get 125 inches of shoreline retreat. So that's where that comes from.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
MS. NORCROSS-NU'U: Is that helpful? Okay. So because of the fact that we will likely be turning more and
more heavily to beach replenishment to address our coastal erosion problems in the future, even if we
were to save all of Maui's inland sand resources for Maui projects we are still going to run out of sand.
And so because of that I would really like to emphasize the need for an offshore sand resource study.
And there have been such studies done before, there has, there are some general databases out there that
tell us where the sand is. But what we need to know more specifically is where is the beach-quality
sand, where is the sand that we actually can put back on our beaches? How much is there and where do
we go to look for it, where do we go to excavate it?
preliminary

But I do believe that there are probably some excellent resources potentially in the Kanaha reef area.
Also, Napili and Kapalua Bays right now are, they've formed a hui and they will be hiring Dr. Fletcher
to do an offshore, localized resource study for them, because they're interested in doing beach
replenishment there with offshore sand resources. So hopefully he'll be doing that in the spring and they
are hoping to use that for beach replenishment. But in the meantime they have to deal with that issue of
being in a water quality limited segment and not being allowed to do beach replenishment based on
Department of Health's regulations. Thank you very much for allowing my, me to comment.
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CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you. Zoe, that was condition or Recommendation No.5 in Mr. Parsons
recommendation. That is something we can do, make a recommendation. I would have to get more
information because we don't have a exact number of what that would cost in order to do that. Because
time is running short I just wanted to thank the panelists. Are there any comments that any of you want
to make before we wrap this up? And I will give some options to the Committee Members.
Mr. Yoshizawa.
MR. YOSHIZAW A: This, this is Eric. Just in addition to the comments of having to qualify sand before
various agencies for use. I think there also is an economic dimension to sand being actually used for
these, these projects. We certainly understand the concerns over availability; however, it has not been
availability that has prevented more projects from coming forward over the past 20 years where we've
seen availability. But some of that is economically driven by what various groups can or cannot fund to
get it done. And I think, as we all recognize, to, to get sand off the ground, particularly inland sand,
there are various hoops that we need to, to move through in order to do that properly. We need to deal
with cultural sensitivity and then any archeological fmds that may be there and to protect them in the
event that we do. So there is an economic dimension that also needs to be perhaps dealt with.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you. Mr. Horneman did you want to make any final comments? Okay. Anything
from anyone else? At this point because we're, I had intended to end this meeting no later than four and
I'm really apologetic to Mr. Munekiyo he never had anything to really-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: He's trying to hide.
CHAIR JOHNSON: --I guess get asked.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Make him talk.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. . .. (chuckled) ...
want to add <>""lTn1InO

JOHNSON: He's hiding out
sight, best tactic of all. I want to thank
the participants and,
you know, I know sometimes this seems like totally frustrating because it's frustrating for me as your
Chair to just do exactly what you're saying is occurring, which is how can we get there from here?
Mr. Carroll has tried it, even when Member Anderson was in Mr. Nishiki's office, it's been tried.
I realize that, you know, we cannot tell the Planning Commission what to do or how to do their job. But
I will state for the record that I have gone myself on a number of occasions, and I think there are other
people in this room that have gone on a number of occasions and expressed their personal opinion about
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what might be a good approach. This is Mr. Souki's last day so more than likely he will not be the one
that is going to sign off as to form and legality as to whatever it is that we choose to do.
But I believe that, as your Chair, the approach that I would like to take is there are some possibilities for
at least preserving the sand that we have. The entities that are dealing with this right now on Maui and
as was mentioned, they're not the only ones. There are other people that are moving sand, there may be
other barges that are leaving, as we speak, of, for people that, you know, are not here at this table. So
what I would like to do is work on a proactive basis to try to come to some kind of agreement or some
understanding as to how we can work cooperatively.
Our objective as Parks and Economic Development is not to put people out of business. There are
things that I felt we were really important, particularly the issues that were addressed by Mr. Yoshizawa
that I was unaware of through being naIve or just uneducated about the challenges that they also face,
the Burial Council, you know, the whole process of extracting and separating and then storing. So there
have been attempts in the past, but what I'd like to do as has been suggested take some direction from
you, take a proactive approach. I will, you know, even though this Council term necessarily is ending, I
will take a proactive approach on my own in working with these individuals. Because I think it's really
important that we try to come forward with something that we could present either to the Councilor
even to the Planning Commission that is reasonable in terms of whether it's a Memorandum of
Agreement, something that takes it in the realm of getting a positive step in moving forward in
addressing this resource depletion.
The other thing that I would like to get guidance from you on is ... uh ... there are--and I mentioned it
about the modification of the grading ordinance. I'd be more than happy to work on a recommendation
that could be brought forward in the next term with regard to the grading ordinance itself because I think
that's a very important issue that has come out of this. . .. (end of tape, start 3A at 3:53 p.m.). .. If
that's a direction ... and--do you have an objections to working on that regard? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: What specifically is the issue that has come forward regarding the grading
not aware
ordinance?
movement
the
be more
happy to
regard to
really makes it very clear as
with you trying to bring some
definition into our ordinances
to when it is, as Mr. Souki pointed out. When is it a mining activity? Or when is it really just the
movement of the grading of material onsite? And I ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Oh, I see what you're saying. In other words, if, if somebody is going to
excavate, you know, I mean I don't know how we can, I don't know how we can do that. Because if, if
they're excavating as part of the grading and this happens all the time, you know, because you're trying
to level the land out for building purposes. So if they're going to excavate then we ask them on the
permit, are you excavating for the purpose of selling the resource to somebody else or are you
- 35 -

PARKS AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui

November 16, 2006

excavating for the purpose of actually grading your lot for building purposes? How are we going to
quantify that? Who's going to go out and check?
And, you know, if they're ...well, you know what's happening, is sand is more valuable than soil so
they're excavating the sand and selling the sand and replacing it with soil where it is not detrimental to
their building purposes. But, you know, you'll see in many instances in soil reports--I've read quite a
few in my day--that soil engineers like to see sand used 'cause it compacts well. And they can, they can,
they can calculate the compaction rate of the sand because there's no organics in it as opposed to soil.
So you would think that if they're going to excavate sand they're doing it for a monetary purpose more
than likely. But you know I don't know if that's the place to address this, Madam Chair. I think what
we, how we need to address this is through legislation specifically addressing the sand as a resource so
that there's some way we can protect those, those beach-quality sands that we have, and you know I
appreciate Barbara's take on it, because I think she's probably very right and Zoe sort of confirmed it
with the water quality test that they've done there now that she's put all this sand in there.
But we have to work within the parameters that we have and within DLNR's rules for beach
nourishment. And so since they call out for certain quality sand, you know, maybe we could look at
legislation that would prohibit the mining of that sand and say, you know, go ahead, excavate the other
and use that for your purposes. But, I just don't know how, I mean, maybe somebody, maybe
Mr. Hanzawa might know because he used to, he worked really hard on the grading ordinance. I
worked with him on the grading ordinance back in the day. What, ten years ago? And maybe he can
see a way to improve the grading ordinance to address that but myself I don't see it. Because you know
as it is right now, we can't, we don't even have enough inspectors to go out and monitor the normal
grading practices that are going on. So what, you're going to have someone go out and test the sand and
make sure they're not excavating sand, the wrong kind of sand or excavating it for sale or export?
That's kind of hard to do. (NOTE: She coughed.) Excuse me. I do know for a fact that Maui Lani took
sand out of the Palama Drive development area and took it up the Haleakala Highway and stockpiled it
there for their base, for the widening of the road. So the State was kind of involved that, you know.
way to
we want to preserve
more the
I mean
at
you
they're, they're a business.
going to be concentrating on what they've already got and how long
that will last them. You know, and if we want to put a restriction on that then the County, I think,
should step up and pay for the study to look at more reserves and where else sand is available. And
then, like I said before, Madam Chair, I think another thing that we can do is we can buy some of their
sand and stockpile it for our own future uses. Because really all they're interested in is making a buck
off of it. It's their business. I don't think they really care if it's, you know, sold to a construction
company or sold to the County. So I mean we certainly have the money. You'll take our money, right?
Or(lm:lID(~e

IS

MR. HORNEMAN: No, we won't because we want that sand for our concrete. . .. (chuckled) ...
- 36-

PARKS AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui

November 16, 2006

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Oh well, you, yeah, that's cause you make concrete.
MR. HORNEMAN: Right. . .. (chuckled) ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Well, maybe we'll have to passMR. HORNEMAN: We don't, we don't ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Use your mike.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Use the mike; right.
MR. HORNEMAN: Bill, with Hawaiian Cement. Yeah. Actually, we don't sell a whole heck of a lot of sand
to Joe Public or anybody except for either beach replenishment or for our concrete.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, that's why we would buy it is for beach replenishment.
MR. HORNEMAN: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. So anyway, those are options that I see, Madam Chair.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR JOHNSON: And, and I'm happy to work with any of the Members, as well as Mr. Hanzawa and any of
the individuals here. But I want to get a sense of where you wanted to go with this because we're
reaching the end of the term and basically any ordinance that has to do with the kind of changes that
we're talking about it's more than likely... and perhaps Planning would know if we did any kind of a
land use change ordinance or with regard to the quality sand
more
to go to

CHAIR JOHNSON: And, and thank you, because that's kind of why, you know, we just didn't have enough
time and this came to us relatively late. But I, it doesn't mean that we're not going to do something
about it. So also as individuals anyone of us if we really...and I have no problem if you want to take
this up, I have no problem with, at your, you know, if you have no objection to it sending a copy of this
Committee report to the Planning Commission as information that would be important with regard to
any permits that they do consider.
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I think that's something that whatever data we're able to gather I think it's really important that they
understand what the concerns are from the Council's perspective. So ifthere are no objections to that I
think it would be not a problem for us to send that forward in conjunction with any permits that they
would review. Are there any objections to doing that? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I don't have any objections but the point is, is that, you know, we're
30 days to get minutes and I think they've waited long enough for their permit. I think the Planning
Department needs to move ahead. Mr. Foley and Mr. Rob Parsons with this Administration have the
history and the knowledge that they could share with the Planning Commission. They've got all this
information, they can share it with the Planning Commission as well as we can. And you know, get on
with it, let these people go about their business and then we do what we can do. Because if we wait any
longer we're going to change Administrations. Mr. Foley is going to be gone, Mr. Parsons is going to
be gone and then we're starting over fresh again. And they're still waiting for their permit to be
finalized.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. Let me askCOUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So.
CHAIR JOHNSON: --a question then. When.. .I guess it's Mr. Horneman, you're the one that's waiting for
the permit? Is that correct?
MR. HORNEMAN: Yes, ma'am.
CHAIR JOHNSON: And when would be the earliest that your issue would be able, because you've got both
the State Land Use Commission and you also, I believe, have the Planning Commission to come before,
and I guess Robyn you would know what the scheduling is?
MS. LOUDERMILK: Yes. When we de ... , when, if Hawaiian Cement wants us to go forward and Mr. Foley
and Mr. Parsons says, let's go forward we have to give the applicant at least 45 days notice
the
scheduling so that
hearing.
public
lannmlg
can
regarding
Planning Commission
make the recommendation to the State
Use Commission. Then we
would be forwarding the information including minutes and we take a little bit longer than 30 days. And
then once they get that information it's up to the Land Use Commission to schedule. So we're looking
at the early part of next year already just because of the notification requirements associated with the,
the permits.
'-VUAAUL.,>J.<VU

CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay.
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CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you very much, Robyn. Yes?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Madam Chair, just real quickly, I've been wanting to ask Mr. Hanzawa
before we break here. His study was only of the, the areas that Hawaiian Cement and Ameron are using.
And you know this is "Maui Inland Sand Resource Quantification Study", so, but what we're hearing is
it sounds like there's other people that are exporting sand. So, Mr. Hanzawa, would you have any
knowledge of who the other players might be? And, and just for clarification, you only looked at the
areas where these two companies are currently operating. That doesn't, this isn't an all, you know,
inclusive report regarding looking at all the areas on Maui where there might be sand? Is that right?
MR. HANZAW A: No. That's--this is Howard--that's not quite right. We looked at actually the history of sand
usage and the areas that are available where sand could be taken out from. And it's, generally, it's over
the last 30 years or so sand has been taken out from more towards the Waiehu or Waihee side of the
central valley and then the, kind of migrated towards the south, towards where it is now in Maui Lani.
And that's just because the areas previously, 20, 30 years ago have been developed over. So you know
the remaining areas are very limited now.
I am not aware of, you know, other significant uses other than the use of...and in the report I have kind
of segmented grade "B" sand from grade "A" sand. Grade "A" sand is the sand clean enough to be used
in concrete and also for placement on the beaches. There, there are probably significant amounts of
grade "B" sand--that's dirty sand--that can be used for fill material, and that's probably what you see
along Haleakala Highway that's being used for that project up there. And I'm sure there are significant
quantities of grade "B" sand that are used in construction. But this, this report was limited to trying to
quantify the use of grade "A" sand. And I am not aware of or was not aware at that time of any other
heavy users of grade, grade "A" sand.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thanks. Well and as you know--what d'ya call? First person
witnesses, I guess, are, you know, valuable, because here's somebody that's going down to this area all
the time and has observed what's going on and she's telling us that since this study happened she's seen
more barges and larger barges. So maybe there's people out there saying, hey let's grab our, you know,
eCl[)fi()mlC opportunity before
So
are people
are, more people that
we

JOHNSON: Yes.
one
things. .
going to
our, our
meeting, and the reason is that if there's any additional information that comes in, the interim because
we're going to get ready to file things at the end of term. I want to see if there are some other bits of
information that I can transmit to you.
I will and I'll try to reiterate, I am going to try to work with these gentlemen to see if we can't come
forward with something whether, you know, it's very doubtful that we can do anything in this term.
I will transmit the minutes because as Robyn Loudermilk stated we do have some time, and I think that
at least to just get it on the record what the concerns of the CounciL The Planning Commissioners many
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times do not have an opportunity to watch our proceedings but at least it'll be there as a resource. That's
No.2.
No.3, I'll find out what the amount is through further research with either Mr. Parsons or perhaps Chip
Fletcher, what the sand study would be, so that we know what the amount is. And I'll make that
recommendation and I will see if it can be included in the Mayor's budget either with the Mayor-elect or
with the current Mayor.
And the final thing that I will try to do is to see if there is some type of approach as far as an ordinance
goes. Whatever that approach may be, I don't know. But whatever that is I'm going to see where we
might have some purview to at least, as Councilmember Anderson suggested, other Members have
brought up, trying to at least see where we do have any authority. If it's not possible I don't see why we
couldn't have 7 th floor draft or assist in drafting ordinances as was mentioned by Member Anderson. So
I will try and get that. And even though it may not be something that's up for consideration next time I
at least want to give you feedback, even ifit's in the fonn ofa communication, as to what I've been able
to learn in the interim. Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you for that, Madam Chair, we appreciate it. I just want to
reiterate that we currently have in our Special Management Area Rules a regulation prohibiting the
mining of sand on Maui's beaches. You can take a bucketful and that's it, and any more than that is a
violation and heavy fine. And that is grandfathered or whatever you want to call it, copied from a State
statute. So it seems to me that we have the, you know, empowering legislation to allow us to do this.
And you know let's just do it.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And then, you know, somebody wants to complain about it fine, then
we'll find out the legality, won't we? And this thing about interstate commerce has nothing to do with
what we're talking about. So I think it's time for us to move, ten years is long enough. This, this
recommendation has been
Beach Management
since 1997. Not a thing has been done about
we
we got bogus advice. Face
something,
authority
we were '-'A'"""'."" ....

JOHNSON: Yes.
I
to echo
concerns
us, as
as the, the overall
economic heath, that's why I believe this particular study came to us. Because we really are concerned
with the viability of the entire County of Maui. And we don't want to all of a sudden find out that we
have no resource, that we're not going to be able to continue. Even if we have an affordable housing
ordinance what good is it going to do if you have no concrete to build the foundation? So I mean
ordinances are great but you know the real world is you still have to have water to supply the people in
the homes as we learned with Mr. Spencer's project. You still have to have the concrete in order to
build. And all of these other things are resources and they're Maui's resources and we feel very strongly
that they should be used for the best and highest purpose for the people here and for future generations.
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So I want to thank all the participants very much and I'll do what I can. If I can get some
communications to you in the interim. I believe our last meeting is coming up on I think the 30th of
November, so I think there's some scheduling potential for other things to come up. But I want to thank
all of you since this is probably...well, I know it's the last meeting that Mr. Souki will be at. And I
want to thank him that, even though we beat you up sometimes, because we don't agree with everything
that you tell us, you're doing your job. And I certainly have enjoyed working with you and I hope that
the opportunities that you're going to be seeking.. .I believe it's Oahu, is that correct? I hope that they
really recognize that you have been a very cooperative person and contributor here to this Committee
and I've enjoyed working with you, and even though we don't agree it's still a pleasure to work with
people who are trying to do the best that they can given the resources available. Thank you.
MR. SOUKI: Thank you.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Any other comments? Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
. . . (chuckled) ...

I thought you were going to ask for announcements and so .

CHAIR JOHNSON: Oh. Yes. I, well,
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I'll make an announcement.
CHAIR JOHNSON: Make an announcement
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: ... (chuckled) ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I'd like to announce that Maui County is very lucky to have somebody
like Ms. Barbara Guild, an 80-year old windsurfer, people, who's also a motion engineer. And how
lucky can that be. So you know go down to Sugar Cove and watch her, she looks like she's 16 out there.
Barbara.

beach
own worst
though, Members, and
participation. And sorry we didn't
you, Staff and Robyn over the peanut gallery. We'U, we'll do our best to see that there is some action
that we can take. That's an we can do. And if it's the right action or the wrong action it will be some
action. Thanks very much.
ponp",y""

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS. (PRESENT: ANDERSON, CARROLL,
JOHNSON, AND MATEO)
ACTION:

DEFER.
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CHAIR JOHNSON: And this meeting of November 16,2006 is adjourned .... (gavel) ...

ADJOURN: 4:17 p.m.
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